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1. Name of Property

historic name Barnhart - Wright House
other names/site humber Barnhart 5 HarVQY'PQvJHOllSE’j Wrigl'it',r%iCharles F. N House

2. Location

street & number 1828 NE Knott Street N/A not for publication
city or town Portland N/Avicinity

state Oregon code _OR  county _ Militnomah code __051 zip code _97212_

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this Kl nornination
[ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property
meets [] does not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant

[ nationall statewide (X y. (IX See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Z_ April 30, 1997

Signature of certifying official/Tite Deputy SHPO Date
Oregon State Historic Preservation Office

State of Federal agency and bureau

/

In my opinion, the property [] meets [] does not meet the National Register criteria. (L] See continuation sheet for additional
comments.) i

Signature of certifying official/Title Date

State or/FederaI agency and bureau

/ /
4. Natighal Park Service Certification ~ AT /1 4 A /]
| hereby/certify that the property is: Al o Kge Iy
entered in the National Register.
[ See continuation sheet.

[J determined eligible for the
National Register
] see continuation sheet.
[ determined not eligible for the
National Register.
(] removed from the National
Register.

[ other, (explain:)




Barnhart - Wright House
Name of Property

Multnomah County, Oregon
County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply) (Check only one box)
Xl private K] building(s)
[ public-local ] district
[ public-State [ site
[J public-Federal L] structure
[ object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter ““N/A” if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
2 buildings
sites
structures
objects
2 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register

N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DQMESTIC: single dwelling

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC: single dwelling

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

English Arts and Crafts

Prairie School

Narrative Description

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)

foundation _ Stuccoed concrete

walls Stucco
roof Asbestos shingle
other

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)
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BARNHART-WRIGHT HOUSE (1913-1914)
1828 NE Knott Street
Portland, Multnomah County, Oregon

COMMENTS OF THE STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE

The two-and-a-half-story English Arts and Crafts style house with Prairie School undertones
standing at the southwest corner of Knott Street and NE Nineteenth Avenue in Portland's
fashionable Irvington district on the east side of the Willamette River was planned and
constructed in 1913-1914 for the speculative market by Frederic E. Bowman, builder of distictive
houses and apartment buildings in the city's residential landscape.

The house faces north on its double corner lot and is generously set back from the street
frontages, which are lined at the parking strip by mature maple trees. Behind the house, on the
south, is a driveway entered from Nineteenth Avenue, and at its head, in the southwest corner, is
a nearly 20-foot square garage with pyramidal roof and hip dormer. Because it was a
complementary part of the original project, it is counted a separately contributing feature. It was
characterized as a "double machine garage" in contemporary publicity. The original garage
doors have been replaced by an overhead door.

The main volume of the house, measuring 36 x 42 feet in plan, rises from an excavated basement
as a two-and-a-half-story building enclosed with a truncated hip roof with wide eave overhangs
and a central front shed dormer. The roof is clad with asbestos shingles, and exterior walls are
finished with stucco. The core volume is flanked on east and west elevations by shed
attachments with shed dormers. An open porch is on the public, or east side; the breakfast room
attachment is on the private, west side. Exterior elevations are formally composed generally.
The character defining feature of the facade is the central bay in which a ground story recessed
porch with classical columns in antis and decorative relieving arch is surmounted by a loggia.
The applicant has traced this portico configuration to earlier fourplexes by Bowman as a kind of
signature feature. The loggia, originally open, has been enclosed with heavily mullioned glazing.
The spandrel between porch and loggia is decorated with a grid of applied "half timbering." It is
the band of upper story openings, high against the eaves line, which, combined with stucco finish
and a bold facade eave overhang, gives the house its faintly Prairie School air.

Windows, consisting of double-hung assemblies arranged formally in two and three-part
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groupings in simple molded framements, express a formal interior organization based on a
central through hall plan featuring a foyer and grand staircase with double returns from a landing
to the second story. There are four basic compartments in the ground story. Dining and living
rooms are in the front; kitchen suite and office/library in the back. A double chimney is centered
in the wall dividing livingroom and library spaces. The attic story contains servants quarters.
Interior finish work is in the Arts and Crafts tradition and consists of plaster walls, paneled
mahogany diningroom wainscot, multi-light mahogany pocket door, art glass windows, ceramic
tile chimney fronts, oak cornice molding and oak floors, door and window trim with architrave
moldings, and a fine staircase with mahogany hand rail spiraled at banister newel.

The house meets National Register Criterion C as a well-preserved, outstanding example of
upper class single family residential construction by F. E. Bowman, whose body of work
embraced as many as 400 projects carried out between 1909 and about 1931. The building's
distinction is based on its relative costliness, indicating quality of finish work such as the grand
staircase, and comparative analysis with like-kind houses. This application identifies a
comparative field of 40 upper class single family houses in Bowman's body of work and
concludes that the house purchased by H. P. Barnhart is distinctive. Only one other Bowman
house, the R. R. Giltner House of 1912, was as costly. Both houses were erected at a cost of
$15,000 and sold for $20,000 at the next transaction. The applicant also seeks to show that
among houses of comparable scale in the Irvington district showing the influence of the Arts and
Crafts and Prairie School, Bowman's house on Knott at Nineteenth is superior for quality and
state of preservation. The applicant presents the history of the Irvington subdivision, which, after
it was served by street car lines, utility services, and improved streets, burgeoned between 1907
and 1916 in an initial wave of development that encompassed the subject property. Irvington is a
well-preserved elite neighborhood which defended against non-conforming development through
deed restriction through 1916, and thereafter by tradition.

The house is noteworthy, but not nominated for association with its second occupant. The first
owner was Harvey P. Barnhart of Barnhart Investment Company, whose dealings were
principally in real estate. He acquired the house in May, 1914 and lived in it with his wife only
three years before leaving the city. In 1917, the house was purchased by Charles F. Wright, co-
founder and vice president of the Portland bicycle and automotive firm of Ballou & Wright.
Wright occupied the house with his wife, Georgie, to 1937. He was a civic leader as well as a
respected businessman.

This application follows the State's recommended method of demonstrating the significance of a
single building within the body of work by a prolific architect or builder. It presents valuable



NPBSG Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number —3__ Page 3

new information on on the builder Frederic E. Bowman (1862-1948), whose active career in
Portland commenced in 1908 and continued to the Great Depression. He was responsible for
constructing over 400 houses and apartments, many of them in Irvington and Laurelhurst, elite
east side neighborhoods developed in the early 20th century.

Bowman was a native of Illinois. He married his wife, Harriet, in 1881. Already an experienced
contractor, he arrived in Portland in 1908 and established F. E. Bowman & Company. His
nephew, Mark D. Hawes, joined the firm in 1910 to handle the real estate transactions. The
applicant documents five places of residence for Bowman. The first home was a simple Arts and
Crafts bungalow of 1908 in Irvington. In 1909, he moved his family to a larger Craftsman
bungalow of his own construction which stands near the subject property at 2416 NE 20th
Avenue. By 1910, the quality of his work had established his popularity as demand for housing
in Portland boomed. By 1912, Bowman's work diversified stylistically and branched into multi-
unit housing as well. A third personal home was erected in 1914 at 2603 NE 24th Avenue, and
the following year the contractor platted Bowman's Addition east of the East Irvington
subdivision. Bowman's fourth personal abode was a Colonial Revival house at 2732 NE
Thompson, erected in his new subdivision after the World War. By this time, the firm was
engaging local architects to draw plans in an effort to keep up with demand. Bowman is
remembered for his success in integrating multi-unit houses into neighborhoods of first class
single family houses by means of compatible design and scale-reducing measures. Even so, in
neighborhoods such as Irvington, the multi-plexes and apartment buildings were resisted, and
Bowman thereafter concentrated on apartment development on Portland's hilly west side, where
tolerance for high density development was greater. Bowman's fifth and final place of residence
was unit No. 4 in his Arts and Crafts-style apartment house of 1916 at 1825 SW Elm in Portland
Heights. The latter place was registered in 1991 under Criterion C. G. R. Wright was the
architect.

The last documented building Bowman constructed in Irvington, we learn from this application,
was designed by Wade H. Pipes, the noted exponent of the Arts and Crafts in Oregon. Pipes
lived in Irvington at the time of the building's construction in 1924. His design for Bowman was
an Arts and Crafts or English Cottage-style duplex. Because the construction business declined
during the Depression, Bowman's work fell off accordingly. The span of his active career ended
in the 1930s. From 1932 onward, his name is no longer listed in local directories as a principal
of F. E. Bowman & Co., but, rather, as private citizen or investment specialist. The builder died
in Portland in 1948.

In addition to the Elm Street Apartments (1916), other documented Bowman-constructed
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buildings listed in the National Register to date are the Bowman Apartments (1913), 1624 NE
Tillamook; and the Irving Street Bowman Apartments [The Alhambra Condominiums] (1926),
2004-2018 NW Irving Street.
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7. GENERAL DESCRIPTION & SETTING

The H. P. Barnhart/ C. F. Wright House is a good example of an elite classed
residence of the Arts & Crafts Style with a strong Prairie School Influence. It was
constructed by prominent builder Fred E. Bowman in 1913 through 1914, It sits at
the southwest corner of NE Knott and NE 19th Avenue facing to the north towards
Knott Street in the heart of the Irvington district in NE Portland.

The general parameters of the district recognized by the City of Portland run from
NE 7th to NE 26th and NE Fremont to NE Broadway. The legal Irvington plat stops
at NE 24th. The Irvington neighborhood contains a large array of residences
ranging from simple bungalow cottages to stately mansions covering a diverse range
of architectural styles. The neighborhood does contain multi-family dwellings, mostly
duplexes scattered throughout the district but concentrated the most in the
southwestern portion and inside a section of the "Holladays Addition to East
Portland" plat (between NE 7th to NE 17th and NE Broadway to just shy of NE
Tillamook). The main portion of the "Irvington" plat is a well preserved residential
neighborhood largely due to careful development by the owners commencing in the
1890s with deed covenants. This quality makes Irvington unique as a close-in east
side neighborhood without all the commercial encroachments that other areas
succumbed to during the course of the 20th Century. Mature tree plantings line all
the streets in the district.

The subject house has a rectangular form that is 36’ by 67’ including the sleeping
porch. It is generally symmetrical in form with a central front portico with an open
covered porch on the east end and a similar sized breakfast nook on the west end.
It is 2 1/2 stories high and has a full finished basement. Typical to most other
houses on Knott Street, it sits only 2 to 3 feet higher than the street elevation and
is set back about 40’ from the right-of-way line.

A two car garage is situated at the rear of the house near the southwest corner of
the property and faces east. (photo 4) Except for the modern garage door, the
garage is original as completed with the house in 1914,

EXTERIOR DESCRIPTION

The 2 1/2 storey H. P. Barnhart/ C. F. Wright House is a wood framed structure
with a smooth stucco exterior on all elevations. This executive residence has a
Prairie School form but contains unique Arts & Crafts features on the north (front)
elevation. From this elevation, the house is very symmetrical, a common form for
Prairie School and Craftsman houses. The quality of construction remains superior.
The roof is covered with asbestos shingles that appear like slate. In the front, the
roof pitches a few feet lower, not typical of a Prairie School but common in Arts &
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Crafts houses.(7) On both the east and west elevations, the roof line pitches all the
way down to the first level.{(photos 1 & 2) A sleeping porch is covered on the east
side.(photo 3) On the west side, the breakfast nook is blended in under the roof
covering at the same pitch. Through the roof line on the north, east, and west
sides, three shed dormers protrude which is another common Arts & Crafts
bungaloid characteristic. At the east end of the roof apex, a multi-flued chimney
protrudes. The front entry is adorned with a round top portico with simple round
columns, a porch type commonly found on the Colonial Revival. Interestingly, many
of the flats (4-plexes) F. E. Bowman built in 1911-12 have identical porticos which
have not been reproduced by other builders. Above the portico are conservative
half timbers added for ornament. The windows on all elevations are simple one-
over-one double hung sash common to the type seen on Arts & Crafts houses. They
differ from the wider double-hung and picture windows common for the Prairie
School. All the windows except for the ones enclosing the upstairs sleeping porch
are original and most use plate glass. On the south elevation (rear) at the second
level, a series of beveled glass windows set in lead illuminates the main stairway.
They have a strong vertical line component, reminiscent of Frank Lloyd Wright’s
designs. These windows have deteriorated but are planned for reglazing and
restoration. v

IXTERIOR DESCRIPTION

THE H. P. Barnhart/ C. F. Wright House has a very efficient and functional floor
plan that is completely original. The interior is rich with exotic hardwood surfaces
and decorated with many Arts & Crafts features. This executive home has 3420
square feet of living area and contains 15 rooms including a billiard room in the
basement.(appendix D & E) Except for the basement and 3rd floor servant quarters,
all the rooms have fine grained cak floors. The entire dwelling is served by a
vapor vacuum heating system which is original to the time of construction.(16) Only
the furnace was replaced about 1995.

As one enters the house from the front door through the large foyer, a very
symmetrical floor plan is evident. Straight ahead, a large stairwell leads up to the
2nd floor and is illuminated by beveled glass windows on the south wall.(photo 5)
The stair planks are fine oak. The smooth red mahogany rails appear to be hand-
rubbed varnished and of special quality. The supporting spindles are painted
enamel which is believed by the owner to be originally done. The staircase is
typical of the type seen in executive Colonial Revival houses and not Arts & Crafts
in design. The foyer contains crown moulding over the doorways that is painted
(believed originally done).

From the foyer to the immediate left (east) is the living room with a fine tiled
fireplace on the south wall. The entrance into the living room from the foyer is
open but contained double (probably French) doors at one time indicated by hinge

55
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marks on the jamb. This well proportioned comfortable room has a coved ceiling
with enamel painted cornice trim serving as picture moulding. The mouldings
around the doors and windows are also crown and painted enamel. Rows of simple
double hung windows surround allowing a good blending of light. A door on the
east wall with many panes of plate glass leads out unto the sleeping porch.

Going back to the foyer, a solid mahogany door leads to the southeast portion of the
1st floor to the den or office. The office is about 1/2 the size of the living room
with a fireplace on the north wall. The windows, ceiling, and fireplace mantel is
decorated with fine oak crown mouldings. An original "Mission" styled light fixture
hangs from the ceiling and two sconces adorn the fireplace mantel.(photo 7) A row
of windows on the south side allow much light inside. At the east wall of this room
also is a similar multi-paned single door that leads tc the east porch.

Back to the foyer, to the immediate right (west) is the dining room served by a
single pocket door with many panes of plate glass and ccnstructed of red
mahogany.({photo 6) For well balanced light and a sense <f space, similar rows of
simple double hung windows on the north wall provide matching symmetry.
Mouldings around the doors and windows are also made ¢f fine red mahogany.
Inside the dining room, rich red mahogany was used for all the wainscot paneling
giving a rich and luxurious texture to the room. In here too, the ceilings are coved
and adorned by mahogany crown moulding. On the scuth interior wall, a swinging
door comes from the kitchen wvia the butler pantry. A bowl shaped light fixture
from the 1950s hangs from the ceiling and is planned to be replaced by one of the
Arts & Crafts style (or Mission). A multi~-pane mahogany door cn the west side
leads to the breakfast nook. Inside the breakfast nock, a box beam ceiling exists,
another hallmark Arts & Crafts feature. Light floods into the noock from rows of
windows from 3 directions.

From the nook to the southeast, one can access the kitchen. The kitchen is small
by modern standards and in proportion to the scale of the house but typical in
executive homes of the period. Some of the cabinets in the kitchen have an Arts &
Crafts feel and are probably original. The counter, sink, and stove (built-in)
appear tc be a result of remodeling in the 1940s or 50s with a streamlined
appearance. To the immediate left on the north wall is a door that leads to the
butler pantry. The butler pantry is illuminated by a large white opalescent stained
glass window from the breakfast nook. Another door on the north wall to the right
leads to a narrow staircase that runs up to the servant quarters on the 3rd floor.
On the south side, there is another door that leads outside to the back walk and
deck. To the east inside the kitchen is a door that leads back to the foyer.

Once in the foyer to the right (south) is the back dcor leading outside towards the
detached garage. Left of the back docr under the staircase landing is a half bath.
Directly left under the main staircase at the rear is a stairwell that leads to the
basement. The basement is (and was originally) finished. On the west side is a
utility area and further north is a large workshop arsza. At the northeast portion of
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the basement is a fine billiards room.(Appendix E) This room has a tile floor with
earth tones representative of the Arts & Crafts period that tend to be in the William
Morris tradition. On the south side is a decorative fireplace. On the east side is a
fine crafted stained glass window which is believed original to the house.

As one returns to the foyer and heads up the stairs, he is met by an open area at
the landing feeding the bedrooms. All the moulding on this level is enamel painted.
Straight ahead is the nursery room. This room used to be a small sleeping_ porch
that was enclosed probably in 1923 being the only known alteration. A vague
building permit in 1923 only mentions enlarging a sleeping porch but there is no
evidence of either sleeping porch being enlarged by photo comparison.(photo 1) The
1923 permit filed contains no sketch and was probably intended as a porch
conversion.(Appendix G) On the second floor in addition is 4 bedrooms and two full
baths by modern terms. The master bedroom is at the northeast corner. A door on
the east leads into a bathroom containing original fixtures including a clawfoot .
bathtub and a hexagon tile floor. This bath sits directly above the open porch
below. On the south side of the master bedroom is a door connected to the
dressing room now considered a legal bedroom. West of the 2nd level foyer are two
bedrooms serviced by another smaller bathroom. This bath also has original tiles on
the floor and sits above the breakfast nook. -

Directly between the westerly bedrooms on the west foyer wall is a door that cuts
~into the narrow stairwell running from the kitchen to the 3rd level for the servants.
" Once ascending the stairwell to the 3rd level (considered 1/2 story), one enters the
servant quarters from the west. The floors on this level are Douglas~fir. Compared
to cramped servant quarters normal for other executive homes, Bowman designed

more spacious rooms with a larger central room and a full bath including a clawfoot
bathtub. He gave consideration for all house occupants for a happier household.

Due to past water damage, this level is currently planned for restoration. ‘

Overall, the Barnhart/Wright House has an intact and functional original fleor plan
that has escaped any major alterations. The 1923 sleeping porch enclosure was done
in good design and does not take away any architectural integrity. The owner has
shown his commitment to the original ambience by conducting meticulous restoration
work inside and plans for more. In addition, non-contributing light fixtures, etc.
are planned to be replaced with period ones using authentic antiques as much as
possible,
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark “x” in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing.)

(1 A Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

[] B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

[ D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark “x”" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

(] A owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

[0 B removed from its original location.

[J € a birthplace or grave.

[0 D a cemetery.

[J E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
[J F a commemorative property.

(] G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

"Areas of Significance

(Enter categories from instructions)

Architecture

Period of Significance

1913-1914

Significant Dates

1914

Significant Person
(Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
Frederic E. Bowman

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibilography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

OJ preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested

[J previously listed in the National Register

] previously determined eligible by the National
Register

[] designated a National Historic Landmark

(] recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey
#

[J recorded by Historic American Engineering
Record #

Primary location of additional data:

[ State Historic Preservation Office
[] Other State agency
[ Federal agency
Local government
(] University
Other
Name of repository:

Oregon Historical Society

v
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10._Geographical Data

Acreage of Property _ 0.22 acres

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

111,0/ [5]2,7]6,9,0] [5,0[4,3(0,2, 0

Zone Easting Northing
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Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

Portland, Oregon - Washington 1:24000
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Zone Easting Northing
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[LJ see continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

nameltitle Roy E. Roos

organization Historical Research Consultant

date November 17, 1996

street & number 2146 NE 12th Avenue

503/282-9436

telephone

city or town Portland

OR 97212

state zip code

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets

Maps

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO.)

name Brian Faherty

street & number 1828 NW Knott Street

telephone 503/282-0998

Portland

OR 97212

state

city or town

zip code

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain
a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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'BACKGROUND ON THE NEIGHBORHOOD & PROPERTY

The present day Irvington neighborhood evolved from a Land Domain Claim by
Captain William Irving and his wife Elizabeth. William Irving was born in Scotland in
1816 and ventured out to sea on voyages when young and worked up to a rank as a
captain. In 1849, he was drawn to the California Gold Rush in Sacramento and
operated steam powered stearnwheelers. He soon arrived in Portland and
established shipping commerce connections. In 1851, he married Elizabeth Jane Dixon
and they established a 640 acre land claim (320 acres each) plus a strip of land th
at ran down to the Willamette River. In 1865, they received a patent deed from the
U. S. Government. In 1852, he built a fine redwood home in the area just northeast
of the east end of the present day Broadway Bridge. In 1860, the family moved to
British Columbia where a new gold rush started in 1857 in the Frazer River Valley.
Elizabeth Irving’s brother-in-law George W. Shaver managed the property and moved
into the home. The Irvings became established citizens of New Westminister, B.C.
until William Irving died of pneumonia in 1872.

In 1882, efforts were started to subdivide the Irving DLC into parcels. Son John
Irving platted a portion at the southeast portion of the claim naming it "John
Irvings 1st Addition to East Portland".(Appendix A) Lot sales started slow and were
insignificant until the advent of streetcar service in the 1890s. Later in 1882, a
business syndicate comprised of David P. Thompson, John Brazee, and Ellis G.
Hughes purchased the eastern portion of the Irving DLC including most of the John
Irvings plat (which was mostly unsold) for $62,000. The area sold was east of the
centerline of present day NE 14th. Elizabeth Irving retained ownership of the
western parcel and returned to Portland by 1885.

On the 24th of October, 1887, David P. Thompson a leading “surveyor and developer,
filed a plat for "Irvington'" on paper with Multnomah County.(Appendix B) This plat
covered the parcels owned both by Elizabeth Irving (Ryan) and the syndicate. It
was conceived to be an upper/middle class and laid out in long rectangular blocks.
In September 1888, Thompson & Brazee appointed Charles H. Prescott as a trustee on
their portion of the plat. In December 1888, Thompson & Brazee sold their portions
(2/3) to Charles Francis Adams, a wealthy banker and Mr. Prescott renamed as a
trustee. Ellis G. Hughes retained ownership of his blocks as well as Elizabeth
Irving/Ryan to the west. In October 1890, Elizabeth Irving and A. G. Ryan (her 2nd
husband) replatted the southwest portion of Irvington south of Tillamock and called
the new subdivision "West Irvington". Lot sales opened up here with deed

covenants restricting building only for residential use.

On July 1, 1891, Charles Prescott and Ellis Hughes opened up lot sales to the public
in the new Irvington subdivision but only between Thompson & Tillamook. The
owners included many building restrictions as 25 year deed covenants as follows:

“During the period of 25 years from and after the st day of July 1891 and until
and after the Ist day of July 1916, no intoxicating liquors shall be manufactured,
scld or otherwise disposed of as a beverage in any place of public resort on the
premises...nor shall said premises at any time during said period be occupied or
used for any shop, factory, or other place of business, or be used for the carrying
of any livery stable, laundry, foundry, or of any trade or business whatsoever, not
for use other than residence purposes, nor be in any manner used or occupied by
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Chinese other than as the said Chinese may be employed by residents thereon as
house servants, no building to be within 25 feet of the street and no building to
cost less than $2500 under penalty of forfeiture.” (9)

In 1891, Irvington was linked to expanding city commerce by the City & Suburban
streetcar line when a line was built north from Holladay Avenue up E 15th to
Broadway via the Steel Bridge.(6) In 1891 & 1892, the average lot price was over
$1000. In April 1893, a severe nationwide "Bank Panic" created a sharp depression.
Portland was hard hit due to a dependence on shipping and timber. The Irvington
subdivision owners subsequently pulled the lots off the market instead of facing
drastic price reductions. They also had to deal with many foreclosures, some
involving houses. Due to gradual improvement of market conditions in 1898, lot
sales were resumed. The Irvington streetcar line was expanded in 1899 east down
Broadway and up E 22nd to a turn around at Tillamook.(6) No other Irvington plat
blocks were opened up until 1905 in response to the successful Lewis & Clark
Centennial Exposition and resulting building boom.(1) Only the blocks between
Thompson & Brazee were opened then maintaining good lot prices.

On September 13, 1907, Charles Francis Adams through trusteeship of the Security
Savings and Trust Company (which he was the president of) sold his remaining
unsold lots plus all the other undeveloped blocks to the newly formed Irvington
Investment Company.. E. A. McGrath was the president and J. C. Costello was named
the secretary. They started more aggressive development techniques and opened up
their blocks to and past Knott Street. They also invested heavy sums into the
latest street improvements with underground water, gas, and sewer systems and
paved streets in addition to the installment of concrete curbs, gutters, and
sidewalks. Irvington was reputed to be the first east side subdivision with "modern
paved" streets. Streetcar lines were expanded up E 15th, E 22nd, and E 24th.(12)
The prices of lots were raised substantially but sales were very strong for the next
9 years. Competition from the other larger subdivisions of Alameda (1910), Rose City
Park (1907), Laurelhurst (1909), and Eastmoreland (1914) did not take much effect
until around 1917.

A large percentage of Irvington’s housing stock was constructed during 1907 to
1916. A second strong growth phase took place during the years from 1919 to 1926
considered commencement of the "Automobile Age" but fell short of the initial
residential building boom.{6) After World War II, the district started to deteriorate
as homes fell into disrepair. By the early 1980s, young professionals began
revitalizing the district being attracted by the charm of the fine old homes.
Renaissance is in full swing now due in a strong part to the city designation as a
historic district in 1992.

Most of the homes on NE Knott Street east of NE 14th and west of NE 24th (where
the subject house sits) range from larger upper class homes to small scale mansions.
The majority of them were built from 1909 to 1917 for prominent residents such as
bankers, lumbermen, doctors, lawyers, and business executives. The Knott Street
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zone contained many of Irvington’s most elite residents. When the street
improvements were completed during development, lots adjacent to the Knott Street
right-of-way were considerably higher priced. $4500 for 2 lots (100’ x 100’) on a
corner was not unusual.

The subject property at 1828 NE Knott is adjacent to several significant residences.
The H. C. Ewing House, a 1911 Craftsman Foursquare of grand scale, stands at 1808
NE Knott to the west. This decorative home was designed by architect Richard
Martin, Jr. and has a rich Arts & Crafts interior. The John L. Bowman Residence
(no known relation to F. E, Bowman) resembles a modest mansion and sits on 6 lots
at 1719 NE Knott (across the street to the northwest). This Colonial Revival with
concrete block construction was designed by prominent architect Ellis F. Lawrence
and built from 1914-16., Directly to the east, the W. A. Hattren House (1926) sits at
1910 NE Knott. This large brick Colonial Revival was designed by architect C.K.
Birdsall.(4)

On the 12th of April 1912, Mark D. Hawes purchased lots 1 & 2 of Block 38 in
Irvington from F. J. Raley for an undisclosed sum ($1 stated on deed). Mark Hawes
was the main associate with the F. E. Bowman Company who handled the real estate
matters. Mr. Raley was an agent for the Irvington Investment Company.(9) On the
24th of March 1913, Mr. Hawes passed title of the property over to F. E. Bowman &
Co. On October 2, 1913, the company filed a plumbing permit with the City of
Portland for construction of a new residence on the property. According to a
surviving plumbing inspection card, the first plumbing inspection was made on
October 10, 1913. The last inspection was made on January 16, 1914 when the house
was near completion.(22)

It is most likely that Fred Bowman drew the plans for the house since he was a well
experienced building contractor. He was quoted in different newspaper articles in
drawing the plans for numerous other homes he built, The researcher viewed
surviving plans for the G. F. Anderson House (1910) at 2747 NE 19th where only the
name F. E. Bowman was printed on the detailed blueprints.(2) The plans for the
subject house apparently did not survive. On the back of the plumbing card, some
irony arose when two names were listed: F. E. Bowman and Durham.{Appendix I)
Durham was listed without first initials. A check of directories yielded no
individuals with the Durham last name that were architects, builders or plumbers.
Furthermore, this same name showed up on a plumbing card for an elegant
Laurelhurst 1911 Arts & Crafts home.(Appendix J) It states "Permission for Durham"
but also lists C. R. Lewthwaite as the architect. There is only a slight chance of
George F. Dunham as the architect but the evidence is inconclusive. The researcher
checked all weekend Oregonian real estate articles during the construction period
and only found mentions of construction and completion of the subject property.
Spelling errors were common on inspection cards but unlikely to occur the same way
on two different cards the same way. Mr. Dunham was the architect for a Colonial
Revival house (1914) at 1528 NE Thompson. The plans have survived in the J.
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Creath House but the interior floor plan does not resemble the Barnhart/Wright
House. .

Amazingly, Fred Bowman built the Barnhart/Wright House on speculation. The
Sunday Oregonian reported on January 18, 1914 that he completed the home at a
cost of $20,000.(15) The photograph has survived and is in the archives of the
Oregon Historical Society.(photo 1) A "For Sale" sign appears in the photo by the
front steps. On the 11th of May, 1914, millionaire Harvey P. Barnhart purchased the
home with cash from Bowman for $20,000.(16) Not much is known about Mr. Barnhart
except he arrived in Portland from the east coast. Directories list him as the
treasurer for the Barnhart Investment Company. Nathan D. Simon was the president
and probably the other proprietor. The firm was involved in real estate and related
investments. He only lived in the house with his wife Annie S. for 3 years with his
wife Annie S. He apparently moved out of the Portland area during World War I due
to his name missing in directories.(23) His local contributions remain unknown due
to the absence of an obituary in the Oregonian index.

On the 4th of May 1917, Charles Frederick Wright purchased the home from the
Barnharts for an undisclosed sum. Mr. Wright and his wife Georgie G. previously
lived in West Irvington at 1206 NE Thompson in a 1907 Craftsman Foursquare styled
house. He was born in Kansas in 1877, and soon the family moved to Montana
engaging in ranching. He went to business school at the State College of Montana.
In 1896, he and his partner Oscar B. Ballou started a bicycle business in Great
Falls, Montana. In 1901, they opened up the business in Portland where he was
listed as the vice-president of the firm Ballou & Wright. His partner Ballou was
listed as the president. This firm initially sold bicycles and parts in response to a
local bicycle craze that started in Portland in the 1890s. The firm became very
successful, and by 1910, diversified into motorcycles and automotive parts. The
company started branch establishments in Seattle and Spokane.(3) The store was
located at the corner of Broadway & Oak.(24) In 1921, the firm had a larger
building built at the NW corner of NW 10th & Flanders and remained active many
more years. He was also the vice-president of the Lumbermans Trust Company.{3)
Wright was well known throughout the Portland business community and also active
in social and civic functions. In 1931, Governor Meier appointed him to the State
Parole Board.(18) He also supported higher education and athletic programs. When
he died in December 1958 at the age of 81, his will left $17,000 to local charities. He
gave the 1st Presbeterian Church and the Lewis & Clark College $5000 each. The
YMCA 7 YWCA received $2500 each and $2000 went to Shriners Hospital for Crippled
Children.(21)

On October 25, 1937, the Wrights sold the house to John G. & Eulalie C. Barnett.
The Wrights moved to 356 SW Kingston in the West Hills. Mr. Barnett owned the
John G. Barnett Company who were importers, exporters, and brokers. After World
War II, he became the branch manager for the US Small Business Administration.
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In 1966, the home was purchased and occupied by Earle J. Swan who was an
accountant. That family lived in the home until recently. The present owner Brian
Faherty purchased the home in March 1996 and has planned restoration and
preservation to its original glory.

SIGNIFICANCE -

The H. P. Barnhart/ C. F. Wright Residence of 1913-14 is significant as a well
preserved example of an upper class home of the Arts & Crafts Style with a strong
Prairie School influence. This elegant home was constructed by prominent builder
Fred E. Bowman. Of the many fine Bowman built homes surveyed, the subject
stands out as one of the most exceptional examples of the master builder. In
addition, it is the most distinctive examples of an Arts & Crafts with a

Prairie School Style influence. Furthermore, the Barnhart/Wright House is identified
in the Portland Historic Resource Inventory of 1983 and ranked high in the category
of architecture.(Appendix F)

It is believed that Bowman built over 400 structures in Portland between 1908 and
1931 both on custom contracts and speculation. It is estimated that over 350 were
residential dwellings, the majority of them homes for middle to upper class families.
He probably built about 40 upper class homes with the majority of them in the
general Irvington neighborhood. In order to obtain a good representation of the
architectural styles for comparison, the survey area was expanded covering several
fine close-in east side neighborhoods. 19 houses were selected for study. The
minimum estimated construction cost was set starting at about $8000 when built.
The average cost of building a dwelling in Portland in the 1910s was around $1500.
Deed covenants in these developing subdivisions generally stated a minimum
construction cost from $2000 to $2500.

The H. P. Barnhart/C. F. Wright Residence is one of the most costly homes
constructed by Fred E. Bowman. It is the most distinctive home of this class in the
Arts & Crafts Style that has a strong Prairie School influence that was carried out
more fully in many other houses constructed by Bowman. Its original floor plan and
use is well preserved. Of the Prairie School styled houses surveyed, no other is
textured with the smooth stucco and decorated with half timbers.

Only 2 homes built by F. E. Bowman come close to the architectural style blend of
the subject property. They were both inferior in cost compared to the subject
house. The Prairie School house (1914) built for Leo Arnett, president of Montavilla
Bank cost $14,000. This home at 2230 NE Brazee slightly suggests the Craftsman
Foursquare due to exposed rafters under the eaves but is broadly massed (less box-
like). It closely adheres to Frank Lloyvd Wright's principles with a shallow roof
pitch and an extended carport.(photo 8) The stucco exterior has a more rough
texture and the home lacks half timbers. The second comparison, the William Smith
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House (1914-15) at 3311 NE 19th, is another Prairie School that exhibits only a few
Craftsman characteristics and only one on the exterior.(photo 9) It contains
interesting pergola type exposed rafters in the portico. The Prairie School style is
also dominant here due to a shallow roof pitch and the lack of dormers. The floor
plan inside along with some Arts & Crafts features is similar to the subject
property. This executive residence was initially reported to be the next home of F.
E. Bowman where a drawing of the exterior by Bowman was published in the
Oregonian on 26 July 1914. Apparently, he changed his mind early in construction
since the finished house varied from the original plans. Exterior ornament was
never used and no stone was used to dress the foundation.(appendix M) The initial
cost was stated to be $15,000 but when completed in 1915, it was sold for less than
$12,000.(27)

Several other Prairie School houses built for upper class residents were discovered
and compared. The E. J. Condon House (1912) at 2311 NE 18th is the earliest known
example of a Prairie School built by F. E. Bowman. This decorative home strictly
adheres to Frank Lloyd Wright’s principles. Another Prairie School as a
good comparison includes the T. H. Richardson House (1914) at 2521 NE 24th.

This one has more simple exterior design but contains mahogany woodwork
inside and was sold to the first owner for $8450.(26) A nearly identical house (1914)
stands at 2602 NE 23rd but has modified front landscaping done in recent
years. Other elegant Prairie School houses built by Bowman were based
on his previous designs and probably derivatives from his plans. One (1916) stands
is East Irvington at 2202 NE 25th and the other (1916) in Laurelhurst at
4035 SE Pine. 5 The latter house was recently clad in vinyl siding but the
recognizable cornice brackets common in many of Bowman’s houses still show. One
other Prairie School (1915) at 2223 NE 28th strongly suggests a Colonial Revival with
its portico.

Also for comparison, some of the most elegant known Arts & Crafts styled residences
were identified in the survey process. A grand but simple shingled Arts & Crafts
home {1910) was designed and built for G. F. Anderson at 2747 NE 19th.” . -~ ',
The plans have survived revealing very detailed specifications as a custom
contract.(2) An elegant Craftsman Foursquare (1910) stands at 2401 NE 23rd across
the street from Bowman’s 1st bungalow (1908).. - } The F. T. McBride House
here was designed and built by F. E. Bowman at a cost of $12,000 according to the
Oregonian.(11) A large Arts & Crafts home (1911) at 1709 NE Thompson was built at
a cost of over $12,000.(13) This home has a similar interior floor plan as the
subject property with its symmetrical layout. - ' Another elegant Arts &
Crafts {1912) next door at 1729 NE Thompson is traditional for the style but has an
interesting front porch extension into a carport which is similar to the layout of

many of Bowman's Prairie School houses. ’ The extension appears to be
original., Another large Arts & Crafts home {1913) at 2626 NE 23rd has similar front
porch details and also exhibits an interesting lst level bay window/turret. It was

built for $9500. The exterior was later resided with asbestos shingles.
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The most grand of the Colonial Revival styled homes built by F. E. Bowman were also
surveyed. The only other house that sold for $20,000 is the Ross R. Giltner House
(1912) at 1729 NE Siskiyou. - Just as with the subject property, Mr.
Bowman built this one on speculation and sold it when completed. Like the subject
property, it has a symmetrical floor plan and rich with interior exotic hardwoods
with an Arts & Crafts influence.(14) Mr. Bowmans 3rd personal residence (1914} at
2603 NE 24th has a similar interior layout and exterior ornament of basalt stone like
the Giltner House but is considerable smaller.¢25) 7 A nearly identical
Colonial Revival (1914) with the same exterior treatment was identified in the
Laurelhurst subdivision at 3443 NE Couch. - * Mr. Bowman’s 4th residence
(1915) in his own new subdivision at 2732 NE Thompson is larger and exhibits the
rich exterior use of locally quarried stonework. = . This was his last east
side residence as he focused more on the development of multi-family dwellings of
higher class. Bowman also built a large Dutch Colonial Revival home (1915) at 3343
NE 19th which is more refined as a Colonial on the interior. -~~~ , A large but
traditional Colonial Revival House (1925) in Alameda had plans drawn by Bowman.
Fine craftsmanship is very evident in this home that was constructed for $15,000.
The Forest Hillier House at 2308 NE Alameda was the only residence identified in the
Historic Resource Inventory associated with Bowman and possibly one of the last
homes built by him on the east side.(4)

In summary, the H.P.Barnhart/C.F.Wright House of 1913-14 stands out above all the
surveyed homes as unique for its two architectural style components. Its cost was
only equaled by the 1912 R. R. Giltner House. In addition, it is evident that F. E.
Bowman is significant for major architectural contributions to Portland’s housing
stock where a group of the homes he built would meet the criterion as an ensemble.
It is also evident that the Irvington district meets National Register Criterion as a
relatively intact residential neighborhood that was developed with careful planning
from the beginning in 1891. It is strongly believed that Irvington was the first
development plan in Portland with deed covenants to maintain a fine classed
residential character. It is one of the earliest streetcar suburban subdivisions on
the east side following the middle class subdivision of Sunnyside (1888). Many other
fine subdivisions such as Laurelhurst (1909) modeled their building restrictions after
Irvington. :

FREDERIC E. BOWMAN: BUILDER

Fred E. Bowman was an active builder in Portland from 1909 to 1931. It is believed
that he built over 400 homes and multi-family dwellings throughout the Portland
area. A large number of the houses are in Irvington and Laurelhurst.

Mr. Bowman was born in 1862 in Illinois but a lot of details about his early life are
unknown. U.S. Census records indicate he finished secondary school but the field
of study was not specified, It is strongly believed he studied construction
engineering or another architectural related subject., He married Harriet Virginia
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(last name unknown) in 1881. They had only one child who died early in childhood
and no other siblings.(8) '

F. E. Bowman arrived in Portland in 1908 with his wife. He immediately engaged in
the building contracting trade by establishing his own firm F. E. Bowman & Co.,
architects and building contractors. His nephew Mark D. Hawes joined the firm in
1910 and handled most of the real estate transactions.(19) Bowman built his first
home for himself in the Irvington district in 1908, a simple Arts & Crafts Bungalow
at 2326 NE 23rd (then 482 E 23rd N in the 1909 Portland City Directory). In 1909,
he built a larger Arts & Crafts Bungalow for his family at 2416 NE 20th. This home
has a classic rustic look by the use of river rock for the porch columns and
chimney, a trademark of the early homes Bowman designed and built., There seems
to be strong evidence that Mr. Bowman had extensive previous experience in
designing and building homes. Comparing his early homes with those of other
builders in the district, he carried out the Arts & Crafts style a little bit further.
The homes do not fit the general profile of homes featured in popular pattern books
although he may have used published general floor plans. Numerous bungalows with
the similar exterior ornament exist throughout Irvington that were built by Bowman.
His name was found on many surviving city plumbing inspection cards.(22) During
this period he drew up the plans for and built varied versions of the Arts & Crafts
Style such as the Swiss Chalet types at 2736 NE 22nd (1909) and 2614 NE 19th
(1910).(appendix L) The second home is around the corner from the subject
property. His homes became immediately popular and received mention numerous
times in the Oregonian by 1910. In July 1910, the paper reported that he had built
over 30 homes and was constructing 9 at the time. He was noted by the quality of
his construction and in demand.(11) His extraordinary initial success collimated on
his artistic designs and the peak period of the great Portland housing boom. By
1912, his home designs diversified into other styles such as the Colonial Revival and
the up and coming Prairie School. He built his 3rd personal home in 1914 at 2603
NE 24th which is a rustic looking Colonial Revival built with fine basalt stonework
on the lower level. His two most expensive homes built (both amazingly on
speculation) are the R. R. Giltner (1912 Colonial Revival at 1729 NE Siskiyou) and
Barnhart/Wright Houses (1913-14 Arts & Crafts/Prairie School mix at 1828 Knott).
They were both subsequently sold for $20,000 each. He also built many other
Prairie School houses of pure form of large to medium scale. Bowman also
experimented with other architectural styles. He built (and probably drew the plans
for) a Mission Revival styled house (1910) at 2524 NE 19th, which is down the street
to the south around the corner from the subject property.

In 1911, Fred Bowman started to diversify his building operations into the
construction of flats (4-plexes) and into apartment buildings in 1912, He started
numerous flats in the southwest portion of today'’s Irvington neighborhood in the
Holladays Addition plat (where there were no deed or zoning restrictions at the
time). In a 10 year period, many structures were built in the vicinity of NE 8th to
NE 17th and south of NE Tillamook towards NE Weidler. Many of these structures
survive today and some are surrounded by modern buildings. Bowman built larger
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decorative Arts & Crafts apartment buildings in this area and also other close-in
east side locations. A well preserved example stands at 1624 - 1636 NE Tillamook
with the liberal use of clinkerbrick. This graceful 1913 building contains larger
apartment units than what was standard at the time and cost $27,000 to build. It
was placed on the National Register of Historic Places in 1989 for significance in
architecture.(8) Another similar building built in 1912 stands at 1825-1835 NE 16th.
Bowmans apartment building ventures became more successful during and after
World War I. He constructed numerous other apartment structures at many west
side locations due to increasing population densities there.

In 1915, as a result of his recent wealth and popularity, Fred Bowman platted his
own small subdivision called "Bowmans Addition" east of the East Irvington plat
(east of NE 27th between Tillamook & Thompson). In that parcel at 2732 NE
Thompson, he built for himself and wife a larger Colonial Revival House of fine
stonework in a similar fashion to his smaller 1914 house at 2603 NE 24th.(25)

After World War I, Mr. Bowman focused more on the construction of flats and
apartment buildings. He often used the hired help of local architects in the plans
for these more complex buildings.(8) In the southeastern portion of the Irvington
neighborhood (John Irvings 1lst Addition to East Portland) east of NE 17th, he built
numerous "higher classed" buildings (mainly flats) on remaining vacant parcels after
the 1891 - 1916 covenants expired. In spite of his efforts in blending the
architectural styles with surrounding single-family residences, he received
increasing opposition from local residents.(17) By this time, he had already moved
into unit #4 inside his Arts & Crafts Apartment House (1916) in the west hills at
1825 SW Elm where he lived the rest of his life. In the 1920s, his residential and
multi-family dwelling building activity became more focused on the west side ranging
from the densely populated areas to the West Hills neighborhoods.(28) The last
known building he built in Irvington was an English Cottage styled duplex (1924) at
1510 NE Brazee. This stucco surfaced building was designed by noted architect
Wade Hampton Pipes who lived in the neighborhood at the time.(5) In 1931, the F.
E. Bowman & Company ceased operation in response to the Great Depression.
Apparently, Bowman got involved in investment management (apartment buildings?)
by 1936 according to directories but only for a few years. He died alone at the age
of 86 on May 20, 1948. After his major architectural contributions to the Portland
area, it is - ironic that none of the newspapers printed an obituary, only a funeral
notice.
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Boundary Description

The nominated property is legally described as Lots 1 and 2 of Block 38, Irvington Addition to
the City of Portland, in Multnomah County, Oregon.

Boundary Justification

The above-described property of 0.22 acres (100 x 100 feet) encompasses the entire urban tax lot
associated with the house and garage built for H. P. Barnhart in 1913-1914. The garage is
counted an accessory feature contributing to the significance of the property.
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Photographs

Barnhart - Wright House (1913-1914)
1828 NE Knott Street
Portland, Multnomah County, Oregon

Roy E. Ross, photographer, Nos. 2 through 9, November 1996
Negatives:  Brian Faherty

1828 NE Knott
Portland OR 97212

1of9 ﬁistoric view, north (front) elevation, January 1914, Oregon Historical Society
negative CN 019790; 1200 SW Park Avenue, Portland OR 97205

20of9 North (front) elevation from NE Knott Street

30f9 East (side) and north (front) elevations from street corner

40f9 -  South (rear) elevation

50f9 Interior view, entry stairhall, looking south

6 of 9 Interior view, dining room, looking east

7 of9 Chimneypiece detail, southeast room (office), ground story, north wall
8 of 9 Comparative analysis photo, Leo Arnett House (1914), 2230 NE Brazee,

Irvington neighborhood, north elevation

90f9 Comparative analysis photo, William Smith House (1915), 3311 NE Nineteenth
Avenue, Irvington neighborhood, east elevation
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Historic
Resource
Invento

CITY OF PORTLAND,/ORECON |

6-487-01828

1828 N.E. Knott Street

Irvington, Block 38, Lots 1, 2
QUARTER SECTION MAP #: 2732
Irvington

=

ORIGINAL FUNCTION: Residence
DATE BUILT: ca. L915

STYLE: Aprts and Crafts

TAX ASSESSOR'S ACCOUNT #: R-42040-8070
ZONING: RS

HISTORIC DISTRICT: Irvington (potential)

SPECIAL FEATURES AND MATERIALS:

Low-pitch hip roof with shed-roofed dormer. Segmental pediment over entry.
Recessed front porch with Tuscan columns. Exterior finish of stucco with mock

half-timbering.

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE: Architecture

Agperdiy. F
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1828 NE Knott St

s .-

"CITY OF PORTLAND, OREGON
DEPART,‘ENT QF gyBLlC WORKS

/ o 1’2'4"‘."5_":“0‘8

R

Daf- May 11 1923, O <IIIRE£U OF BUILDINGS. - i . :3‘,, .,
| Buildiog 674 Kno ttREEORT oitvf,"f,,spEﬁT@‘ch st. , E.19th -
" Lot . Block in . Addition
" Owner %EM_O Address above
Contractor . game Address
- _L_Stqry, Class Vil , Grade 4-4 , RGP.RSS d (‘nqr$6’09.
{ DATE HOUR DESCRIPTION OF ALTERATIONS AND REPAIRS

Enlargs present sleeping parch.
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fresly andvaluntarily . R

R f"\
lagt above »written, - ‘1' A
(.'Ut\rhl Seal ) 1P Lee PR
\
Rec for Recard May 24 1512 at 11:38 A X Notery Pudlie fa. o,.ad&b ,

e e 00 O e
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YN 583149 . e
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RAIEY ET UIX TO HAWES

A“ ;‘

during sald period of twenty five years be ocoupied or nuﬂ fur
factory or othar place of business, or be used for the nm‘hﬂ*‘ﬁ
. livery stadle, laundry, foundry, on of any trade or builiiess wha "&‘#t. ol

b

}
existing under and by virtue s
ardt (21000.00) Dollars to it in hand paid by Julia A Hays of P_qtt}g;ﬂ ﬁi




A t ,gﬂd htbo same, with all the eppurtensnces thereto belonging, or in anpe

‘“n_ . i

i iy, um. nun anl sewer assessemts, and that they will amd their °

J, lt?uu.uid P { Ralg” mad Addice Ralay Ms wife, have hersunto set
by ——  day of Aprll 1712,

J 8 Wilhelm

}}2‘:6{?& .. .. _ Wotary Public for Oregon ,
J!U“i*a’“"v(w an® Fhig . i

. ...—...—.....wo..._.......
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KNow ALL l&m BY THESE PRESENTS, That Mark D Hawes, unmarried, of Multnomah County in
'A ths Stnte of Oregan, beiny of lawful age, in consideration or £190,N0 ne “unnred Nollars, to
: :AbBim paid by fj F Howman & Co, & corpqration of Multnoms-h Nounty in “he L te of Orsgon, do

o~

: hereby grant, baryain, :eli an+d convey unto wid 7 20, ity teira rm! anriono, all

F. Powmen *
the folliwing bdourjied and described reanl property, nitunted in the county of *ul*nomh end
-} Btat.e of Oregon.

All of DLo%s mumbsred (1 % 2) nNne and two, in bdloek mndbersd (38) tidirty eipht, Trving-

tfton, According to [t,“e plat thereof culy recorded and on r'ile in <Na o 'fice o1 ths County Clerk

or Multromah f‘ourmy, Orst;on,

Subjoect. horwovor to the conditions and recstrictionn net orth in a dacd of record and
recordad in book SI,*H, on pape %7, recorda ot deeda of ialtnomsh "ounty, Sra.on.

TO HAVE AND ™ ‘“)bD thes nbove <ranted premisnes with all the ri;"ts, e.rerents and

appurtenrnces thereto balon.ing unto the mald F F i’o-«:mn % Mo, 1ts tedirn ond Aarsione Sorever.

of Anc the oald ;rantor does covenant to and with the sadd grentee ita Velrs ~ne a rl.ono nhat s

2 Wrroe o . e
(O ae 3o e e

B 194,

“lbrences. The grantpr m.¥eus no covenent limited or otherwise noncernin; texes, street and new-

1

or ansansments or hny ¢thsr bon-ded indehtsdnecs affecting ol real property, ~nt t¥st hs will

jand his he'rs, #wbutore and a.dminiof.rntoro ohall warrant and derend the above ;‘ranta prece~

imo, to the said jirantee lt'x heirs and a:zsigns foraver a;:ainct the lawful =l ir- rnd ne~efnin

07611 paruono amo ¢t the bonrjod 1ndebtadnens a'feeting ori proparty.
b b i )
vIIWITHEBSi WHRRIDF, I the Jrantor above named, hereunto et my lund n! senl this deh

LY

day of March 1913,
~ o |
Witnass te the omrnt ion hereof:

4T 2

B J Lowe '

~

A R Ritter YMark T Hewen TS S

e

el &

.o

S‘I‘ATF OF OREGON )

v ) 85
pmmy of wultnomh )
THIS CIRT Ir’IPB That on this 25th day of March A D 1913 vetore ne, L1e underol .sd.n

notuy pudblie in anr' for neid County and State, parusonally tppeared $hs wice! in named Mark i



ald ocorporation by autaority of its Board of direotors 'urd the sald Ju 1! Euv\nu.ord

acknonledged Suid Instrum:nt to bhe the free noh and deed hf Snid corporetion

I WITVESS WHEPEOF I{.'have hereunto set miy ‘hohd and affixed amy official sk

" my offias in the oity of 5t Paul the day and year losu: aforesnid
(Notarisl Seal) W.L’. Von Deyn
Y cormizsion expires May 10,1920
Rec,for record May 12 191U at 10:50 A.M.

Ma# w7210

F.E.B0TMAT 2 CO TO BARNHART
¥MOT ALL ¥ BY THLSE FRRSENTS
12ed nd inoor-porated under the lawa of the
Twenty Thousand Dollars  to 1t peid by H.P. Barnhart doafmoreby grant bnrgain aolr. md
conver Lo ald
of ren.ll eatats sithate 1lying ancbeing in thé County of l;ultnomah and State of oraronto:
All of Lots ‘lumbered '1 end 2
corporate 1imits of tho City of Portlard Multnomeh Cownty Oregon
Subjent however to tha conditioms  end restx;iotiona
rscord and recorded in Book 588 page
nuh.Ject however to & certain mortgege in f‘avor of Peter Nplsm\ 1

f.ember 11,1913 for the aum of - 37000,00 and on reoord in book 526 on pege

iMortgnger of lultnomah County Oregon which the grantee n,zreeﬁ to assune ancl pay'

Together with the tenements horedibnments and appurber\nnoes thcre\mto‘
jor in anywite appertaining and also u.ll,;Lts estate right title and Interest at law md.

“therein and thereto

T0 MAVE ATD TO MOLD  the Same to the soid ILP. Bsrnhnrt. h1-1heu jud aas

A
LA
‘forever...And the said F.E, Bowman & Co does covenant wilth the said E.P. Damhar an

3,7

‘his  le-gal representatives forever, that

‘plc of the rbove granted premisasthet the above granted premises

u-bmnoﬂ and that .it. vril.l and 1'0.'!' suooessors ﬂhull worront e det‘end the :
___heirs and “u;ssigns roraver

.. exdept bm‘lded oicy lion! for st.root emd nanor au.su&\
R : PR r,g.gy\ 1

e

%

D
o
e

M, EES

granted primifedand ove - part anc parael tiereof

all pertons whomuoever exsept tireet and Meser
T wIT'ILTY WHEREOF

this 22nd day of June 1913

F4gmed. Benled ané¢ delivared in
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21rst abcve #PM‘X H
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of Diredotrs - duly md legally cdopted has CeuSed theSe prc?emts o be Signed by 118

1t,s .Ssoretary -and its corjorcte tiais 11tk

seal to be nerewmnto affixed

P.E. Bovman & Co
By F.E Bowman President
F.E. Bowman & Co '
By M.D.Hames Secretery

o _i:’;s‘ljlth day of May 1914 before me appesired F.E. Bowman and M.D. Hawes both
érsonally lnown .who being duly Sworn did say that he the Said F.E Bommwn dis

oknovrlodgod ~sa.j.d 1nstrunent to be the free aot and deed of said Corporation

IN TESTINONY WKEREOF -1 nave hereunto Se% _wy hand and affiyed my official =mesl this

W, Adair

Notary Public in and for said County and Siate.

mmmm e eme () Q. ————-—

(8900.09) Dollars

wifo of Powlmd State of oregon in oonsideration of Nine Fundred
State of Oregon have dargoined

d" by tios. pnsents ’ db‘ gr‘ant bar'gniﬁ sell end convey wnto said Ellen Lay- |

(5) "Términus Addition to Albine® sccording |

&gé“'rwmty-fow (24) “in Blook Pive
Lapse o L B AR \ .
@uly Teoorded plat thersof and mow within the corporate limitsof the City of

(i S R :
-tbcnhot with 81l end singular the temementshereditamentn and appurtensnnes there- .
estate right title and inter- .

so' bolm:ng oF in anywife sppertaining and also sll our
19\ md u th un moluding dolm' and olaim of domer.
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Qeot and No. b,

' Owner Addn” o K
Master Plumber. Lot =X .‘"mk' ﬂﬁf' PR
Jour. Plumb Addition 272 N 7
No. Stories and kind of Bmldm 2k~ : b o !
What used for% .

No- Water Closets. Basins No. Rain Con" d._.____[___(uwor or curh) \
No. Bath Tubs dry Tubs No. Floor Draine / ¥
No. Sinks No Unn-ll.__é\,.____ Not and Size of Stack (} y h

No. Slop Sinka X ted to Sewer orCasspeel)
Kind of Venta &M Kind of Drains q " M

Other Plumbing l{uren

Water Permits 9%3' JZ 7]6
ate of Eirst | /d]/d lQ.-Z Date of Final Inspecti /[~ /e 19

D
nspector _____._%444.%!:\-1:«!01' }
Date of t Cerllfxcuto Date of Final Cértificate

{

Total No. Fixtures /6,

SEE OTHER SIDE FOR REMARKS
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